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HICKAM AFB, HAWAII
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February 9, 2004

QUESTION 1:  The RFP is silent on a storm water system.  Should this be considered part of the scope at Hickam AFB or Bellows AFS?  Can a proposer offer an alternative to include storm water in its proposal back to the government?

ANSWER:  No.  Yes, as an separate unsolicited proposal.

QUESTION 2:  Is there a restriction on how vehicle/equipment fleet is handled in the cost proposal ie. capitalized versus O&M?

ANSWER:  The government is unable to answer this question as stated.  Please clarify the question and an answer will be provided.
QUESTION 3:  What will be the provision for an operation center building and/or yard for the successful proposer?
ANSWER: It is up to the offeror to include this in his proposal.

QUESTION 4:  It is assumed that the proposers will not have any liability for Contribution In Aid of Construction taxes.  Is this a correct statement?

ANSWER:  Regulated water and wastewater utilities are exempt, by statute, from paying Contribution In Aid of Construction (CIAC) taxes.  Otherwise CIAC generally applies.   With respect to specific particulars, the offeror is encouraged to consult their own legal counsel.

QUESTION 5:  Will the real property transferred be subject to property taxes to be paid by the new owner?
ANSWER:  As a reminder, no property is being transferred under this privatization effort, only the utility system.  The Federal Government is not conveying the underlying land associated with the utility system.  A right-of-way will be the document allowing the successful offeror access to the utility system for operations, maintenance, and system upgrades.  The offeror is encouraged to consult their own legal counsel or accountant to obtain a definitive opinion on their tax status.

QUESTION 6:  Please provide and all Environmental Assessment (EA) reports information in and around the assets to be transferred.

ANSWER: Any information available was provided in the tech library.

QUESTION 7:  If an EA has not been conducted, will the government perform one before transition to the new owner?

ANSWER:  The Government completed an EA (Environmental Assessment) before proceeding with the Utilities Privatization Request for Proposal.  In accordance with 

the Air Force's Environmental Impact Analysis Process, a "categorical exclusion" was assigned during the early stages of development of  Hickam AFB's utilities privatization program and the environmental assessment was certified by the Hickam AFB environmental protection manager on an AF Form 813, Request For Environmental Impact Analysis.  The AF Form 813 is on file and is available for review in the Hickam AFB Base Civil Engineer Environmental Flight. 

QUESTION 8:  Please clarify the requirement on page 72 of the RFP to include "completed pricing information for Section B" (L.8.1) in Volume III when elsewhere in the RFP we are instructed to keep pricing information only within Volume IV, Price Proposal.

ANSWER:  That is correct, all pricing information should be submitted in Volume IV, Price Proposal.  An amendment will correct this error and remove this statement on page 72 of the RFP.

QUESTION 9:  What are the specific delineations of the Capehart and Earhart Housing (street boundaries) which excludes sewerlines 6” or less from privatization?

ANSWER: See privatized MFH map provided on 2 Dec 03.

QUESTION 10:  What are the specific boundaries of the itemized fixed inventory for the section called Housing? Does it exclude Capehart and Earhart?

ANSWER: The inventory does not include Capehart and Earhart that will be conveyed to the MFH privatization but it includes the mains thru this areas.

QUESTION 11:  In the Wastewater Collection System Fixed Inventory, Hickam AFB page J3-8 lists Asbestos Cement Pipe 15-in twice. Is the second entry a typo or is it meant to be a different year of construction?

ANSWER:  The Asbestos Cement Pipe is for two different years. The first entry is for: 1959 and the second entry is for 1964. 

QUESTION 12:  In our review of the library documents, we could not find any information on Wastewater Lift Stations 23B, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, and 35; except what was listed on the Fixed Inventory pages and the GIS map printed and distributed. Can you provide information of the minimum downtime, pump horsepower, number of pumps, type of pump, and manufacturer for these lift stations?

ANSWER: All information available for the different lift stations was provided in the tech library.  (Information is listed in the attachment J3 except for downtimes and manufacturers.)

QUESTION 13:  During the “windshield tour” to Bellows AF on 11/14/03, it was mentioned that in addition to the 10 “cavitette” systems at Bellows AF that there are 2 cavitette systems at Hickam AFB. Are these included in the privatization and if so, where are their locations?

ANSWER: No.

QUESTION 14:  In conflict with the statement in J3.2.1.1, para. 2 of the Hickam AFB Wastewater Collection System, “There is no monitoring of the system by SCADA”. The wastewater lift stations are, in fact, monitored by SCADA and the signals are sent to the Base Fire Department control center where personnel can be called out depending on the type of emergency (ie. Power outage, high water, pump operating, etc.) Will this service continue as part of the MOU executed for fire protection (page J3-15, para. 12) by the Air Force or will the proposer have to install a separate SCADA system?

ANSWER: There are no monitoring by SCADA.  Monitoring of lift stations by the fire dept are for high/low lever alarms and no power.  The contractor will be responsible for monitoring the lift stations.

QUESTION 15:  Can you provide additional information on the Wastewater Collection “Green pumper truck (in Bldg. 4016) as noted on page J3-13 (ie. Year, manufacturer, capacity, pumping capacity, etc.).  

ANSWER:  The Green pumper truck is a 93 International Truck Tank Sewage or

Waste Collection 2000 gallon, Model 281T2000.  The pump is not operational.
QUESTION 16:  In the Capehart Housing area approximately half of the wastewater flows to Porter Ave. (near Bldg 202) and then across to the Navy, as well as what flows across from the Navy side at two upstream locations on Porter Ave. Since the flows are not metered, will there be a requirement in the future that these flows be metered (even though no new meters are required in J3.5.2 Required New Secondary Meters)?

ANSWER: Meters are not required at this time.

QUESTION 17:  Does the Hickam AFB Utilities Shop maintain a wastewater spill report and/or blockage report and is that available?

ANSWER:  The Utility shop doesn’t have this information.

QUESTION 18:  Are sewer laterals included in the UP Scope of Transfer?  If so, which ones and where are they located?

ANSWER: Yes except for the MFH Privatized areas.

QUESTION 19:  Are grease traps included in the UP Scope of Transfer?  If so, which ones and where are they located?

ANSWER: No.

QUESTION 20:  Self-insurance shall not be permitted under the Right-of-Way during periods when we do not have a service contract in place.  “If and to the extent required by law, workers’ compensation and employer’s liability or similar insurance in form and amounts required by law.” 

We satisfy the workers compensation requirements as required by law. We are authorized by the State of Hawaii to be self-insured for workers compensation ($1 million per occurrence with insurance above that). We also are authorized to be self-insured for auto liability but we have insurance above our $200,000 self-insured retention.

      The ROW doesn’t allow self-insurance when we do not have a service contract in place. 

· (a) Does a service contract have the same restriction? 

· (b) If not, and should we be selected, would a service contract be considered to be in place such that the ROW self-insurance restriction would not apply? 

ANSWER:  (a) No.  (b) Yes.

QUESTION 21:       The requirements ask for comprehensive general liability insurance on an “occurrence basis” ($1 million for BI and $.5 million for PD).

We have our primary general liability insurance from AEGIS, a utility companies’ mutual insurance carrier. They do not provide their insurance on an occurrence basis (since 1986) instead providing it on a “claims first-made” basis. The majority of utilities across the nation are members of AEGIS and they have this same coverage. 

· Does this “claims first-made” basis satisfy the intent of the ROW? 

ANSWER: Yes.

QUESTION 22:  Each policy is to provide “no cancellation, reduction or material change until at least sixty (60) days after receipt by Grantor of written notice thereof; provided that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against Grantor; and be reasonably satisfactory to Grantor in all respects.”(Notwithstanding, if cancellation is for non-payment, it shall be effective after 15 days written notice to Grantor.)

Under AEGIS coverage, there is a 10day notice for non-payment cancellation. 

· Would this 10-day notice provision satisfy the intent of the ROW?

ANSWER:  Yes.

QUESTION 23:  Section L.4.4 states: "The minimum requirement for hypertext link is a table of contents linked to each file provided in the proposal. Additional hypertext links within the proposal are at the Offeror's discretion."  Can the table of contents file (hypertext links - HTML) be set to Auto-Run in the user's internet browser when the CD is placed into the user's PC?

ANSWER:  Yes.

